encourage experiments in reindeer-breeding in suitable areas in Scotland and/or elsewhere in the United Kingdom and overseas, and to engage in any appropriate activity ancillary thereto. The immediate concern of the Council is to take advantage of an offer of twenty-five first-class breeding and draught animals from Scandinavia, which would be transported to the British Isles and cared for by trained herders for a minimum of three years, without cost to Great Britain. The offer was made in response to the interest shown, especially by Scots, in the economic possibilities of domesticated reindeer. The honorary secretary to the Council is Dr. E. J. Lindgren, Annesley House, la Union Road, Cambridge. Purely from the biological point of view, and as an experiment, the generous offer of twenty-five reindeer made to the Council is of considerable interest, provided that a suitable area can be found where the animals would have an opportunity of flourishing without disturbing seriously the native fauna, and that adequate measures to prevent their escape over the countryside are taken.

Russian Periodicals: Translated Contents Lists

SINCE September 1947, the use of Western European languages in periodicals has ceased in the U.S.S.R. Pplor to that time the lists of contents in many periodicals were translated into English, French and German, while some of the periodicals, such as the Journal of Physics, were published entirely in Western European languages. In attempts to make known the contents of Russian periodicals, many organisations have been translating contents lists for their own internal use. Recently, the Department of Scientific and Industrial Research started a scheme for collecting these lists and publishing them at monthly intervals under the title of "Translated Contents Lists of Russian Periodicals" The first issue appeared in June 1949. The original typescripts are used to make rota-print plates photographically, and it may be partly due to this that the booklet appears to be more up to date than two similar publications appearing in the United About a hundred Russian scientific and States. technical periodicals are available for export to Great Britain, and the publication of the Department covers some seventy of these in all fields, including agriculture and medicine. Copies of the "Translated Contents Lists of Russian Periodicals" are circulated free of charge to all co-operating organisations and, so far as the supply will permit, to other research organisations. If the demand becomes much greater, it may be necessary to charge for copies. A list of the periodicals not at present covered by the scheme is available, and anyone interested in helping to make this publication complete is invited to write to the Secretary, D.S.I.R. (Intelligence 1), Dorland House, 14-16 Regent Street, London, S.W.1.

Centre for Studies and Documentation in Palæontology, Paris

THE Museum d'Histoire Naturelle in Paris has set up a Centre for Studies and Documentation in Palæontology to provide, in the form of microfilm, photocopy of letter, information and bibliographical or systematic references on the following subjects : (1) General information about the different sciences of the earth; for example, details about the location of extensive collections of geological or stratigraphical terms, etc. (2) Bibliographical information on the

different sciences (mineralogy, petrography, tectonics, geophysics, applied geology, regional geology, stratigraphy, general palæontology, biological questions of interest to the palæontologist). (3) References and figured slips dealing with animal and plant systematics in general (bibliographies, lists of types, lists of genera and higher groups, systematic groupings). In addition to palæontological study, collections of the Centre can be consulted on the spot. Information on the above subjects is obtained by regular analysis of some 2,500 journals. Special studies can also be made, on request, for the period prior to 1940 or on any particular subject. The Centre also undertakes summaries of various articles, translations of articles published in Russian or Polish, and the preparation of figures of type-specimens in old collections. These documents are listed as they are completed in a small three-monthly bulletin. The use of the Centre is open to all, and in addition members (annual subscription of 300 fr.) receive the bulletin free of charge and can obtain reproductions at special rates. All inquiries should be addressed to : Prof. Roger, Centre d'Études et de Documentation Paléontologiques, 3 Place Valhubert, Paris 5. Payments should be made to Syndicat de Documentation Géologique et Paléontologique, 61 Rue de Buffon, Paris 5.

Transfer of Medical Books in the United States

THE New York Public Library has recently given twenty thousand medical volumes to the New York Academy of Medicine, these books being in the main the original collection accumulated by the Public Library during the nineteenth century when Dr. John Shaw Billings, earlier noted for his association with the Army Medical Library, was connected with it. This gift to the Academy of Medicine represents the fulfilment of an agreement entered into in 1910 between the Academy and the Public Library, whereby the former took over the medical part of the latter's library service. Since that time the Academy has served freely the needs of all in New York who have desired to consult medical literature, and it caters at present for about forty thousand readers a year. Of the twenty thousand volumes it has received, the Academy has decided to retain some eight thousand, adding them to its present collection of 260,000, and to give the remaining twelve thousand to the Southwestern Medical College in Dallas, Texas. This latter is a new College, founded in 1943, and is in the process of building up its library. Most of the larger medical libraries of the United States are located east of the Mississippi River, and it is highly commendable that the New York Academy of Medicine has made this contribution to the growth of a medical collection in the newer areas of the West.

Gresham's School Natural History Society 36

THE twent reveals report of Gresham's School Natural History Society once more shows the virility of these societies in our public schools. The report contains a list of the meetings and visits arranged by the astronomy, botany, entomology, meteorology and ornithology sections as well as a record of common and rarer plant, animal and other observations made during the year. The editor points with pride to two fine photographs of the American pectoral sandpiper (*Calidris melanotos*). This rare immigrant was first observed by one of the members of the Society in September 1948, and the photographs afterwards taken were the first to be obtained of this bird in the

British Isles and probably in Europe. There is also a record of an attempt, in which the boys of Gresham's School have played an important part, to establish a fulmar colony at Weybourne and another of a visit paid by members of the Society to Skokholm. Abridged reports of two prize-winning efforts in an essay competition deal with the birds of the Yealm Estuary in South Devon and a biological survey of a small stagnant pool, and show that Gresham's School is admirably contributing to the future supply of our field paturalists.

field naturalists. National Forest Parks

THE latest in the series of National Forest Park guides prepared by the Forestry Commission are those for Gien More in the Eastern Highlands of Scotland and Hardknott in south-west Cumberland. The one for Glen More has been edited by Prof. John Welker Walton, who also describes the vegetation of the district. In two separate articles, A. Macpherson Grant and Miss I. F. Grant describe the history and traditions of the district, while descriptions of the geology and wild life are contributed by J. G. C. Anderson and Seton Gordon. Accounts are also given of the forests and plantations and the climbing grounds and hill walks in and around Glen More Park. J. M. Bannerman has provided a list of Gaelic place names and their translations, and there is a comprehensive bibliography. There are also a number of etchings, photographs and specially prepared maps, all of a quality which equals the high standard of the contributed articles. The guide for Hardknott has been prepared on a similar plan and reaches an equal standard of excellence. Five of these guides have now been published and may be obtained from H.M., Stationery Office, price 2s. each.

Diseases of Lachenalia glaucina

LACHENALIAS, are grown rather sporadically in British hartigeliture. They have not hitherto been attached by many fungal parasites; but D. E. Green and M. A. Hewlett describe a bulb rot and a leaf spot appen this host (*J. Roy. Hort. Soc.*, 74, Pt. 5, 211; May 1949). The bulb rot is caused by a species of *Fusarium*, and *Mystrosporium adustum* is the parasite in leaf spot. Inoculation experiments have proved the pathogenicity of *M. adustum*, and have shown that it produces symptoms of ink disease on *Iris reticulata*.

Advisory Committee on Colonial Geology and Mineral Resources : Appointments

THE Secretary of State for the Colonies, Mr. A. Creech Jones, has appointed an Advisory Committee on Colonial Geology and Mineral Resources to advise him on matters relating to the geological survey of the Colonial Empire and the investigation of its mineral resources. The membership of the Committee is': Mr. C. G. Eastwood (chairman), Colonial Office ; Mr. N. L. Mayle, Colonial Office; Dr. F. Dixey, geological adviser to the Secretary of State ; Mr. E. S. Willbourn, Directorate of Colonial Geological Surveys ; Mr. G. E. Howling, principal, Mineral Resources Division of the Colonial Geological Surveys; Sir Edmund Teale, formerly mining consultant to the Tanganyika Government and director of the Geologica Survey, Tanganyika; Sir Lewis Fermor, formerly director of the Geological Survey of India; Mr. R. Annan, chairman of various gold mining companies operating in Africa; Mr. S. H. Boileau,

chairman of the Chrome Co., Ltd., and the African Manganese Co., Ltd.; Dr. C. H. Desch, director of the Iron and Steel Institute; Dr. J. G. King, director of the Gas Research Board ; Mr. F. B. Howard White, Mond Nickel Co., Ltd.; Dr. W. F. P. McLintock, director of the Geological Survey of Great Britain; Sir Andrew McCance, president of the Iron and Steel Institute; Mr. B. Lightfoot, formerly director of the Geological Survey of Southern Rhodesia ; Prof. A. E. Trueman, chairman, University Grants Committee; Prof. H. H. Read, professor of geology, Imperial College of Science and Technology, London; Dr. G. M. Lees, chief geologist, Anglo-Iranian Oil Co.; Prof. J. A. S. Ritson, professor of mining, Royal School of Mines, London; Mr. L. C. Hill, Rio Tinto Co., Ltd.; Sir William Ogg, director of Rothamsted Experimental Station ; Mr. E. H. Beard (joint secretary), Mineral Resources Division of the Colonial Geological Surveys; Mr. R. H. Hobden (joint secretary), Production and Marketing Department "B", Colonial Office.

Royal Society of Edinburgh: Officers

THE following have been elected officers and members of council for 1949-50 of the Royal Society of Echnburgh: President, Prof. J. Kendall; Vice-Presidents, Sir Ernest Wedderburn, Prof. A. C. Aitken, Prof. E. P. Cathcart, Sir Alexander Garay, Prof. A. Holmes and Prof. W. O. Kermack; General Secretary, Dr. J. E. Richey; Secretaries to Ordinary Meetings, Prof. E. T. Copson and Prof. J. Norman Davidson; Treasurer, Mr. A. W. Young; Curator of Library and Museum, Dr. D. Guthrie; Ordinary Members of Council, Prof. J. H. Gaddum, Prof. G. D. Preston, Prof. S. J. Watson, Mr. R. Ll. Gwilt, Mr. E. G. Dymond, Mr. C. W. Parsons, Prof. R. W. Wheldon, Prof. T. Neville George, Prof. J. W. Heslop Harrison, Dr. C. E. Lucas, Prof. M. G. Say and Prof. W. M. Smart.

University of London

PROF. D. H. HEY, professor of chemistry at King's College, has been appointed to the Daniell chair of chemistry tenable at the College from October 1, 1950, in succession to Prof. A. J. Allmand, who will be bettiring at the end of the session 1949–50. Dr. Forrest Fulton has been appointed to the University readership in bacteriology and immunology tenable at the London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine from October 1. The title of professor emeritus in the University has been conferred on Prof. C. A. Lovatt Evans on his retirement from the Jodrell chair of physiology at University College, to which he was appointed in 1926; and on Prof. C. B. Fawcett on his retirement from the chair of geography at University College, which he has held since 1928.

The following doctorates have been conferred: D.Sc. on R. A. Gregory (University College), and J. E. Webb (Birkbeck College); D.Sc. (Eng.) on A. J. Gould (external student), and A. W. Skempton (Imperial College).

ERRATUM. In the communication on "Adenosine Triphosphatase Activity . . ." by Dr. A. Csapó in *Noture* of October 22, p. 702, we regret that "triphosphatase" was printed instead of "triphosphate" in par. 1, line 13; par. 2, line 9; par. 3, line 5; par. 4, line 3.